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USC’s 128th Commencement signaled a culmination as well as a new 
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new beginnings

beginning – not only for 12,513 graduates, but also for the university as a whole.
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the year kicked off  with C. L. Max Nikias’ inauguration as USC’s 11th president in October 

2010. A member of the Trojan Family since 1991, Nikias has served the university as a professor, national 

research centers director, dean and provost. ¶ In his first year as president, he brought vitality and new  

vision to the office, raising an unprecedented $1 billion in gifts. These transformative contributions included  

$200 million from Dana and David Dornsife to name USC’s College of Letters, Arts and Sciences — the  

single largest donation in the university’s history; $150 million from the W. M. Keck Foundation for  

medicine; and $110 million from Julie and John Mork for student scholarships. ¶ With support from  

a galvanized Trojan Family, the university dedicated the Eli and Edythe Broad CIRM Center for  

Regenerative Medicine and Stem Cell Research at USC on the Health Sciences 

campus in October and broke ground for the Roger and Michele Dedeaux 

Engemann Student Health Center on the University Park campus in April. 

The physical transformation continues with construction of a state-of-the-art 

athletics complex and other buildings on the University Park campus, as well as 

a plan to beautify and enhance facilities for education, patient care and research 

on the Health Sciences campus. ¶ As tangible signs of USC’s continued ascent among the academic elite, the 

university recruited stellar new faculty, including two more Nobel laureates, and established faculty members 

were recognized for their scholarly work with prestigious awards and election to eminent honorary societies.  

¶ Building on the strengths of the university’s humanities programs, the new Provost’s Postdoctoral 

Scholars Program in the Humanities attracted an accomplished cohort of early-career researchers who will 

receive fellowships as well as faculty mentoring and research support. ¶ In February, Nikias led a delegation 

to India, where he met with key Indian partners in higher education, business and government, bolstering 

USC’s commitment to being a truly global institution. ¶ Closer to home, USC expanded its program of 

community engagement by attracting the country’s largest literary festival, the Los Angeles Times Festival 

of Books, to campus in late April. For two days, more than 400 authors provided a nonstop schedule of 

readings, book signings, literary discussions, writing workshops, storytelling circles, music and comedy 

performances, and more. ¶ Two weeks later, Nikias presided over his first Commencement ceremony 

as president. At the start of his own journey as USC’s leader, he stood before 40,000 graduates, parents,  

family members and friends as a living symbol of new beginnings. “To be a Trojan is to be an adventurer,” 

he told the class of 2011, which included his two daughters. “The Trojans always seize destiny.”
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In addition to bringing fresh 
ideas and voices to ongoing 
conversations in the humani-
ties, the scholars are expected to 
teach three courses during their 
four-semester appointments — 
one course per semester, with 
one semester free for full-time 
research. In return, USC  
prepares the scholars for the 
academy by providing faculty 
mentoring, research support,  
and time to develop strong re-
search and teaching portfolios.

Selected from a pool of  
more than 900 applicants, the 
inaugural cohort comprises six 
accomplished thinkers who  
will invigorate discussion within 
and across fields ranging from 
Japanese literature and visual 
culture to philosophical inquiry 
into how theories of language 
constrain theories of the mind.

New Era in Medicine
With the dedication of the  
Eli and Edythe Broad CIRM 
Center for Regenerative Med-
icine and Stem Cell Research  
at USC on Oct. 29, 2010, the 
university ushered in a new era 
in medical research. “This new 
center carries out our promise 
to society,” said USC presi-
dent C. L. Max Nikias. “In the 
future, historians will search for 
the turning point in the age of 
medicine and biology, and  
when they do, they will look  
to this place. They will look to 
this time. They will look to this 
CIRM Center and they will 
look to Eli and Edythe Broad.”

The $80 million, 87,500- 
square-foot building — a corner-
stone in the biomedical research 
corridor on USC’s Health  
Sciences campus that includes 
the Zilkha Neurogenetic Insti-
tute, Keck Hospital of USC and 
USC Norris Comprehensive 
Cancer Center and Hospital 
— is the product of a public-
private partnership among the 
Keck School of Medicine of 
USC, California’s voter-created 
California Institute for Regen-
erative Medicine, and Eli and 
Edythe Broad, who gave $30 
million toward its development.

With eco-friendly features  
including a double-glazed  
curtain wall on the east side of 
the structure and an innovative 
system that uses water instead of 
air to cool the space, the build-
ing is the first on the campus  
to receive a silver Leadership in 
Energy and Environmental  
Design (LEED) designation.

The Broad Center houses four 
core laboratories and 11 research 
teams, and is actively recruiting 
new scientists who will investi-
gate the biological mechanisms 
that control stem cell behavior, 
with the goal of translating this 
work into new therapies for a 
vast spectrum of diseases. 

$25,000 and $100,000, and at 
the level of $25,000 and below, 
some 105,000 individuals gave 
an impressive $44 million.

As an endorsement of USC’s 
mission, the passion behind every 
gift of every size makes a state-
ment that amplifies the Trojan 
Family’s collective voice.

Humanities Scholars
Postdoctoral studies, which 
occur between graduate school 
and a scholar’s first faculty  
appointment, have become a 
key factor in ensuring success  
in academia, yet postdoctoral 
fellowships remain rare outside 
disciplines with ready access  
to grant funding. To address this 
imbalance — and to build on 
the strengths of USC’s humani-
ties programs — USC is pro-
viding funds for postdoctoral 
positions for exceptional Ph.D. 
graduates in the humanities.

Announced by USC provost 
Elizabeth Garrett on Nov. 1, the 
Provost’s Postdoctoral Scholars 
Program in the Humanities, 
when fully implemented, will 
support up to 12 early-career  
researchers for two years. Junior 
scholars from institutions around 
the world are selected via a  
competitive process involving 
distinguished faculty from USC 
humanities departments. Eligible 
fields of study include American 
studies, art history, classics, com-
parative studies in literature and 
culture, critical studies (cinema), 
East Asian languages and cultures, 
English, French, history, linguis-
tics, musicology, philosophy, and 
Slavic languages and literatures.

associated with the Keck School 
of Medicine of USC, as well 
as Keck Hospital of USC and 
USC Norris Cancer Hospital.

John and Julie Mork and 
their family made another historic 
gift: $110 million to create the 
USC Mork Family Scholars 
Program. This gift — the single 
largest for scholarships in USC’s 
history — benefits high school 
seniors who have demonstrated 
extraordinary academic achieve-
ment and civic engagement.

Two leadership gifts were an-
nounced at Nikias’ inauguration: 
$50 million from Ming Hsieh  
to establish the USC Ming 
Hsieh Institute for Research 
on Engineering-Medicine for 
Cancer, and $50 million from 
the Annenberg Foundation 
for a new building for the USC 
Annenberg School for Com-
munication and Journalism.

Another major gift — $15 mil-
lion from Roger and Michele 
Dedeaux Engemann — sup-
ports construction of the Roger 
and Michele Dedeaux Enge-
mann Student Health Center 
on the University Park campus.

Equally impressive, over  
the course of the year another 
176 donors made gifts between 
$250,000 and $25 million, 874 
people provided gifts between 

Transformative Philanthropy
During President Nikias’ first 
year in office, USC achieved a 
magnificent landmark: raising  
$1 billion — more than any  
other U.S. university in the 
course of a single year.

In March 2011, USC received 
$200 million, the largest single 
gift in its history,  from Dana 
and David Dornsife. The gift 
provides unrestricted endoment 
for the college, which has been 
named the USC Dana and David 
Dornsife College of Letters, 
Arts and Sciences. The new 
Dornsife Scholars Program 
recognizes outstanding graduating 
seniors pursuing scholarly inquiry 
into pressing social challenges.

In June, the W. M. Keck  
Foundation announced a gift  
of $150 million that provides  
essential research funding and 
brands USC’s academic medical 
enterprise as a cohesive whole, to 
be known as Keck Medicine of 
USC. Under that umbrella, the 
Keck Medical Center of USC 
comprises the faculty physicians 

Year in Review FY 2010-2011

In his first year, USC president C. L. Max Nikias 
brought tireless vitality to the office, raising an  
unprecedented $1 billion in gifts. These transformative  
donations included $200 million from Dana and 
David Dornsife to name USC’s College of Letters, 
Arts and Sciences — the single largest donation in  
the university’s history; $150 million from the W. M. 
Keck Foundation for medicine; and $110 million  
from Julie and John Mork for student scholarships.

$6 BILLION
FUNDRAISING

GOAL

2010-11
$1 BILLION
IN GIFTS
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in gifts during 2010-2011, an unprecedented achievement
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Also in 2010-2011, two of 
USC’s athletic teams — men’s 
water polo and men’s tennis — 
made their own marks in his-
tory. Both squads claimed their 
third consecutive NCAA cham-
pionships. For men’s tennis,  
junior Steve Johnson also took 
home the NCAA singles title —  
becoming the first Trojan to  
do so since 1996. 

Faculty Distinctions
USC’s faculty grew in stature  
in 2010-2011 with the hiring  
of two more Nobel laureates: 
physicist Murray Gell-Mann and 
economist Daniel L. McFadden. 
The university also welcomed 
two new Provost Professors — 
Lee Epstein (law and political 
science) and Kate Flint (English 
and art history) — as well as  
two Judge Widney Professors — 
Dana Gioia (poet and former 
NEA chairman) and alumnus 
Frank Gehry (Pritzker Prize-
winning architect).

Faculty scholarship was  
acknowledged by election to  
the National Academy of Engi-
neering (Mark Humayun and 
Aristides Requicha), Royal  
Society (Simon Tavaré), Ameri-
can Academy of Arts and Sci-
ences (James Higginbotham  
and trustee Wanda Austin), 

American Academy of Political  
and Social Sciences (Manuel 
Castells), and American Acad-
emy for Social Work and Social 
Welfare (John Brekke).

President Obama bestowed 
the Presidential Citizens Medal 
on neuroscientist Roberta Diaz 
Brinton and the Presidential 
Award for Excellence in Science, 
Mathematics and Engineering 
Mentoring on robotics expert 
Maja Matarić. Neuroscientist 
Antonio Damasio received Ja-
pan’s Honda Prize for Scientific 
Achievement, electronic gaming 
expert Bing Gordon won the 
Academy of Interactive Arts and 
Sciences’ Lifetime Achievement 
Award, and health economist 
Dana Goldman was honored 
with the inaugural Silver  
Scholar Award of the Alliance 
for Aging Research and the 
MetLife Foundation.

In the arts and humanities, 
historian Kevin Starr was in-
ducted into the California Hall 
of Fame, violinist Midori Goto 
received the Kennedy Center 
International Committee Gold 
Medal in the Arts, and Father 
James Heft of the Institute for 
Advanced Catholic Studies  
received the Theodore M.  
Hesburgh Award for Leadership 
Excellence. Faculty authors  
receiving acclaim included  
Percival Everett (Rezzori Prize 
for best fiction translated into 
Italian) and Vicki Forman  
(PEN USA Literary Award  
for Creative Nonfiction).

near the campus and were  
attending for the first time.

Another highlight was a book 
drive benefiting libraries and 
classrooms at the USC Family of 
Schools and Target Corp.’s part-
ner schools. Approximately 4,000 
new and gently used books were 
collected, compared with about 
800 the previous year.

Excellence in Athletics
While USC athletics began  
the term with an impressive  
113 national championships  
and 122 Olympic gold medals, 
2010-2011 was one of the  
most remarkable years in the 
program’s storied history.

In January, the university 
broke ground on a $70 million, 
110,000-square-foot facility  
that will house all 21 varsity 
sports. Set to open in summer 
2012, the center, named for  
former Trojan football coach 
John McKay, provides space for 
an academic center, coaches’  
offices, meeting rooms, an ath-
letics training room, a digital 
media production facility and  
a state-of-the-art locker room 
for the football team.

USC also welcomed two new  
women’s sports — lacrosse and  
sand volleyball. Lindsey Munday, 
a former All-World member of 
the U.S. women’s lacrosse team, 
was chosen as first head coach of 
USC’s women’s lacrosse team, 
which will begin its inaugu-
ral season in 2013. And USC 
alumna Anna Biller Collier, who 
coached in two Olympics, will 
lead the women’s sand volleyball 
team starting in spring 2012.

“With the bonds that were 
formed here, USC now has the 
opportunity to be a major player 
in connecting the United States 
to one of the fastest-growing 
cultures and economies of the 
coming decades,” said Varun 
Soni, USC’s dean of religious 
life and a native of India.

Festival of Books
After 15 years on the Westside, 
the Los Angeles Times Festival  
of Books — the country’s largest 
public literary festival — kicked 
off its 16th year in a new home 
on USC’s University Park cam-
pus April 30 and May 1, 2011. 
After a rousing performance by 
the Trojan Marching Band at  
the opening ceremony, USC 
president C. L. Max Nikias and 
Times publisher Eddy Hartens-
tein said it was fitting that the 
two institutions had joined 
forces. After all, as Nikias pointed 
out, USC and the Los Angeles 
Times are the two oldest surviving 
secular institutions in the city.

The collaboration yielded  
a packed but smoothly run  
festival that brought together a 
record number of exhibitors and 
authors, featured more staged 
events and panels than ever  
before, and attracted more than 
140,000 Los Angeles residents — 
including many who live  
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TOP FIVE 
COUNTRIES FOR
INTERNATIONAL

STUDENTS

Passage to India
The international Trojan Family 
grew stronger when USC presi-
dent C. L. Max Nikias led a del-
egation of faculty, administrators 
and trustees to India.

USC has 1,600 students from 
India, the most at any American 
university, and generations of 
alumni in Mumbai, New Delhi 
and Bangalore, the three cities 
the delegation visited. 

Nikias met Indian leaders, 
including Prime Minister  
Manmohan Singh and USC 
trustee Ratan Tata, to explore 
new avenues for collaboration. 

In each city, USC faculty  
presented their pioneering work 
to local media and dignitaries. 
Neuroscientists Antonio and 
Hanna Damasio shared develop-
ments in brain research, cinematic 
arts expert Paul Debevec discussed 
his Academy Award-winning  
visual-effects work on Avatar, and 
professors Stephen Hora and  
Erroll Southers of USC’s National 
Center for Risk and Economic 
Analysis of Terrorism Events  
explained science’s contributions  
to the war on terror. 

The delegation also celebrated 
the opening of USC offices in 
Mumbai and Bangalore to sup-
port student recruitment, alumni 
relations, fundraising and faculty 
research.

Year in Review FY 2010-2011

In February, USC president C. L. Max Nikias led  
a delegation to India, where he met with key Indian 
partners, bolstering USC’s commitment to being a  
truly global institution. “With our many connections 
to India, we believe we have an obligation to build 
even more bridges between Southern California and 
the educational, political and technological hubs  
of India,” Nikias said.

CHINA

INDIA

SOUTH KOREA

TAIWAN

CANADA
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35,794
applicants for 2,972 places in the 2010 freshman class
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USC School of Architecture 
Graduate studies at the USC 
School of Architecture, enrolling 
more than 200 students, now  
encompass five programs: the 
master of architecture, the mas-
ter of landscape architecture, the 
master of historic preservation, 
the Chase L. Leavitt master of 
building science and the Ph.D. 
Faculty and graduate students are 
conducting leading-edge research 
in digital technology, parametric 
design and robotic fabrication. 
Sponsored by the school and 
the USC American Academy 
in China, a month-long exhibi-
tion called DigitalFUTURE in 
Shanghai, China, illuminated  
innovative projects in integrated 
digital technology and robotics 
conducted by USC faculty and 
graduate students along with  
professionals and academics 
worldwide.

USC Leventhal School  
of Accounting 
The USC Leventhal School of 
Accounting welcomed William  
W. Holder as its new dean. 
Holder, who has been a professor 
at USC since 1979 and previ-
ously served as Ernst & Young 
Professor of Accounting at the 
university, is an expert on audit-
ing and financial accounting and 
reporting. His research has been 
published in the Journal of Accoun-
tancy, The Accounting Review and 
other journals. He has directed 
the USC SEC and Financial 
Reporting Institute since 1994 
and also has a distinguished career 
as a consultant.

USC Marshall School  
of Business 
Under the leadership of Dean 
James G. Ellis, the USC Marshall 
School of Business completed FY 
2010-11 with major curriculum 
enhancements at the undergradu-
ate and MBA levels. A center-
piece of the MBA curriculum is a 
new global context course featur-
ing worldwide economics, global 
strategy and an international  
experience. USC Marshall’s Soci-
ety and Business Lab created an 
interdisciplinary social entrepre-
neurship minor in conjunction 
with the USC School of Policy, 
Planning, and Development. USC 
Marshall attracted 21 new faculty 
members from institutions such as 
the London School of Economics 
and Stanford. Marshall MBA  
students won the coveted Golden 
Briefcase award in the Challenge 
for Charity competition for West 
Coast business schools.

USC School of Cinematic Arts 
Over the past year, the USC 
School of Cinematic Arts inau-
gurated the Marilyn and Jeffrey 
Katzenberg Center for Animation 
and dedicated the John Williams 
Scoring Stage. “These incredible 
resources, made possible by long-
time friends and supporters of the 
school, will greatly enhance the 
educational experience of future 
generations of the SCA family,” 
said Dean Elizabeth M. Daley.  
In August, the school will begin 
construction on Phase III of the 
Cinematic Arts Complex: a state-
of-the-art facility that will house 
the Interactive Media Division, 
the Institute for Multimedia  
Literacy and the Interdivisional 
Media Arts and Practice program.

Academic Unit Milestones

With some 37,000 students and 3,300 full-time  
faculty in the USC Dana and David Dornsife College  
of Letters, Arts and Sciences and 17 professional 
schools, the University of Southern California can  
attribute its success to excellence in teaching and  
innovative research, a commitment to civic engage-
ment, and a loyal educational community, the  
Trojan Family.
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USC Annenberg School  
for Communication  
and Journalism 
In October 2010, USC Annen-
berg celebrated a $50 million  
gift from Wallis Annenberg to 
construct a building where col-
laborative learning and research 
spaces will spark innovation,  
enabling the school to take 
advantage of future technologies 
and teaching approaches. The 
school also launched two major 
initiatives: the USC Annenberg 
Innovation Lab, where students 
and faculty collaborated with five 
major corporations on projects 
with real-world applications and 
societal impact, and the USC  
Annenberg Institute of Sports, 
Media and Society, which exam-
ines sports’ impact on culture, 
business and media.

USC Dornsife College  
of Letters, Arts and Sciences 
In 2010-11, a historic $200 mil-
lion naming gift of unrestricted 
endowment dramatically under-
scored USC Dornsife’s place  
at the heart of the university.  
Faculty from the humanities, social 
sciences and natural sciences con-
tinued to receive international 
recognition, including Antonio 
Damasio (Honda Prize), James 
Higginbotham (fellow of the 
American Academy of Arts and 
Sciences), Larry Swanson (presi-
dent of the Society for Neurosci-
ence) and Simon Tavaré (fellow 
of the Royal Society). At USC’s 
Academic Honors Convocation, 
15 out of 19 student award win-
ners and four of five new Distin-
guished and University Professors 
were from USC Dornsife, as  
were seven of USC’s 10 student 
and alumni Fulbright fellows.

Ostrow School  
of Dentistry of USC 
A five-year, $2.6 million NIH 
grant received by Prof. Michael 
Paine will support Ph.D. and 
postdoctoral students at the  
Ostrow School of Dentistry  
of USC. The school was also 
awarded a $1.5 million NIH 
grant, allowing for the hiring of 
assistant professors Amy Merrill-
Brugger and Ruchi Bajpai. Prof. 
Yang Chai received a prestigious 
five-year, $2 million Method  
to Extend Research in Time 
(MERIT) award. Physical 
upgrades included a new CAD-
CAM facility, a renovated clinic, 
and remodeled lecture halls 
funded by significant gifts from 
Vident, a Vita company; the  
Century Club support group;  
and many alumni and friends.

USC Rossier School  
of Education 
At the USC Rossier School of 
Education, about 1,600 current 
and aspiring teachers are earn-
ing degrees through its online 
MAT@USC — more students 
than Stanford (415) and Harvard 
(972) combined. Cutting-edge 
technology has increased enroll-
ment tenfold over USC Rossier’s  
on-campus MAT program. The 
school is helping transform urban 
and high-need schools not only 
by preparing teachers, but also  
by preparing counselors, princi-
pals and superintendents, and by 
attracting scholars and researchers 
whose work advances policies  
and practice in K-12 and higher 
education. The school is also  
focused on filling the pipeline  
of STEM (science, technology, 
engineering, mathematics)  
teachers and expanding world-
wide partnerships.

1,600
STUDENTS IN USC ROSSIER MAT@USC  

ONLINE PROGRAM

10 students and 
alumni named 

Fulbright fellows 
INCLUDING SEVEN FROM  

USC DORNSIFE 
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USC Roski School of Fine Arts 
In late 2010, the USC Roski 
School of Fine Arts announced 
the launch of its new M.A. in  
art and curatorial practices in the 
public sphere program, a platform 
for scholarship in contemporary 
art and curatorial practice that 
uniquely addresses social ques-
tions of public space. The fol-
lowing spring, the undergraduate 
sculpture area welcomed artist 
Jason Meadows for a special six-
week workshop, during which 
he worked with students to con-
ceptualize, fabricate and install a 
temporary sculpture outside Watt 
Hall. Students had the oppor-
tunity to hear from and interact 
with a number of visiting artists 
and curators, including Olafur 
Eliasson, Thelma Golden and 
Michael Snow.

USC Viterbi School  
of Engineering 
The past year at the USC Viterbi 
School of Engineering was as  
exciting as it was historic. Three 
faculty members were recognized 
by the White House for their 
achievements, two joined the  
National Academy of Engineering 
(NAE), and the school hosted the 
second National Summit on the 
NAE’s Grand Challenges.  
The latter convened the most 
innovative minds across disciplines 
— beyond just engineering —  
to tackle what have been identi-
fied as the 14 Grand Challenges 
of our planet and society. USC 
Viterbi’s reputation as a research 
powerhouse was bolstered with 
more than $183 million in grant 
funding, representing a 13 percent 
growth over the previous year.

USC Davis School  
of Gerontology 
In FY 2010-11, the USC Davis 
School of Gerontology recruited 
its biggest-ever incoming class,  
as well as recording its largest 
number of graduates. The school 
welcomed two new faculty 
members: Cleopatra Abdou and 
Sean Curran, who won the Elli-
son Medical Foundation’s New 
Scholar in Aging Award. In addi-
tion, Valter Longo received an  
$11 million National Institute on 
Aging research grant and spear-
headed the launch of the school’s 
first study-abroad program.  
Senior Laura Corrales-Diaz  
Pomatto won the USC Stevens 
Institute’s grand prize, and Ph.D. 
student Morgan Canon won a 
Gerontological Society of Amer-
ica award for the best student  
research paper.

Independent Health  
Professions 
The number-one-ranked USC 
Division of Biokinesiology and 
Physical Therapy continued to 
innovate in education, research and 
practice in FY 2010-2011. The 
division opened the Bice Clinical 
Research Center and the Sullivan  
Clinical Skills Technology Center, 
and expanded space and treatment 
services at USC PT Associates on 
the Health Sciences campus. In 
FY 2010-2011, the USC Division  
of Occupational Science and 
Occupational Therapy received 
a record number of educational 
program applications, appointed 
seven new faculty members, won 
five extramurally funded research 
grants including one establishing a 
rehabilitation science postdoctoral 
training program, and published 
research outcomes demonstrating 
the effectiveness of preventive 
occupational therapy. 

Faculty members  
receive White House  

recognition
USC VITERBI SCHOOL OF ENGINEERING  

PROFESSORS HONORED

$50m
FOR NEW ANNENBERG COLLABORATIVE  

LEARNING BUILDING

Zemeckis Center for Digital Arts
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6,900
 INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS 

 ENROLLED 2010-11

Record number  
of incoming students  

and graduates
IN THE USC DAVIS SCHOOL 

OF GERONTOLOGY

USC Gould’s Tom LyonUSC School of Cinematic Arts

USC Libraries 
In FY 2010-2011, inspired and  
supported by the late Sidney  
Harman, the USC Libraries 
became the home of the Academy 
for Polymathic Study, an entity 
that promotes integrated, interdis-
ciplinary thinking — and doing —  
at USC. The libraries added 33 
new electronic resources and 
secured a $200,000 grant from 
the National Endowment for 
the Humanities to digitize pho-
tographic images of historical 
Los Angeles. Events — from the 
revival of the original 1973 Festival  
de Flor y Canto to the 23rd 
annual Scripter Award to the sev-
enth annual Wonderland Award 
— celebrated USC Libraries’ 
enduring capacity to inspire new 
scholarship and creative work.

USC Gould School of Law 
The National Institutes of  
Health honored Tom Lyon with 
a $2 million grant to refine and 
test his protocol for interviewing 
maltreated children about their 
abuse — methods he developed 
with support from a previous 
$1.7 million NIH grant. The 
USC Gould School of Law  
established two new certificate 
programs: Business Law, directed 
by Daniel Klerman; and Enter-
tainment Law, directed by former 
Warner Brothers executive  
John Schulman. Hannah Garry 
launched the International 
Human Rights Clinic, which will 
partner students with judges and 
legal staffs at the International 
Criminal Tribunal for Rwanda 
and the Extraordinary Chambers 
in the Courts of Cambodia.

Keck School  
of Medicine of USC 
The new $80 million, five-story 
Eli and Edythe Broad CIRM 
Center for Regenerative Medi-
cine and Stem Cell Research at 
USC is the product of a public-
private partnership between the 
Keck School, the Eli and Edythe 
Broad Foundation and California’s 
voter-created California Insti-
tute of Regenerative Medicine. 
The Keck School expanded its 
community-based clinical out-
reach, opening a satellite location 
for the Keck Medical Center of 
USC in Beverly Hills. Also dur-
ing FY 2011, the school received 
$248.3 million in grant awards 
— a 14 percent increase from FY 
2010. National Institutes of Health 
awards made up 73 percent of 
total grants awarded in FY 2011.

USC Thornton School of Music
The USC Thornton School of 
Music received gifts from the 
estates of alumna Adrienne  
Westerbeck and Hazel Crandall  
as well as a gift from USC trustee 
Alfred Mann and his wife, 
Claude, endowing the Robert 
Mann Chair in Violin and Cham-
ber Music. The school also built 
new practice rooms and refur-
bished facilities for its popular 
music, music industry, and jazz 
programs. Alumnus Billy Childs 
and faculty composer Vince 
Mendoza received GRAMMYs, 
alumnus Bear McCreary was 
nominated for an Emmy, rock 
legend Steve Miller joined the 
school as artist-in-residence, and 
faculty members Alphonso John-
son and Midori Goto garnered 
prestigious national awards.
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USC School of Policy,  
Planning, and Development 
The USC School of Policy,  
Planning, and Development 
(SPPD) added scholarly perspec
tive to the worldwide Ronald 
Reagan centennial celebrations  
by convening the first academic 
symposium to examine lessons 
learned from the former Califor
nia governor and U.S. president. 
Partners included the Reagan 
Presidential Foundation, USC 
Annenberg School for Communi
cation and Journalism, and USC 
Bedrosian Center on Governance 
— one of 11 research centers 
housed in SPPD. The school also 
welcomed Nobel laureate Daniel 
L. McFadden to its faculty and 
honored U.S. secretary of labor 
Hilda Solis MPA ’81 with the 
Robert P. Biller Medal for  
Pioneering Public Service.

USC School of Pharmacy 
Consistently ranked as the  
top private pharmacy school in 
the country, the USC School  
of Pharmacy is also number two 
in National Institutes of Health 
funding among all pharmacy 
schools. The school’s research  
enterprise is complemented by  
a commitment to community 
outreach spearheaded by students 
in the PharmD program, recently 
recognized with the American 
Association of Colleges of  
Pharmacy Student Community 
Engaged Service Award. Other 
noteworthy students include the 
recent graduates of the doctor  
of regulatory science program, 
who are the first in the world to 
earn this specialized degree in  
the global arena of regulation.

USC School of Social Work 
The USC School of Social  
Work launched the first national 
Webbased MSW program,  
making it the most rapidly 
expanding social work graduate  
school in the country. This vir
tual academic center offers the 
same degree available on campus, 
featuring live, virtual classes 
bringing together faculty and  
students as well as interactive 
study groups and chat sessions. 
Field internships are coordinated 
in students’ hometowns. The 
school also partnered with the 
Department of Defense Educa
tion Activity to transform 149 
San Diego public schools into 
more supportive environments 
for military families and their 
children, creating a prototype for 
school districts nationwide.

USC School of Theatre 
The School of Theatre had the 
largest incoming freshman class  
in its history; inaugurated a new 
master of arts in applied theatre 
arts, which explores how theatre 
can be applied to nontraditional 
theatrical settings including  
education, therapy and political 
activism; and was represented  
at USC’s 2011 Commencement 
when an honorary doctor of  
humane letters was bestowed 
upon Girish Karnad, India’s  
preeminent contemporary play
wright, the first theatre artist to 
be so honored by the university. 
In addition, the school expanded 
the very successful arts event  
“Get Your Hands Dirty” from 
once a year to twice a year.

14%
INCREASE IN KECK SCHOOL GRANTS  

OVER PREVIOUS YEAR

Fastest growing 
social work program 

in the country
FIRST NATIONAL WEB-BASED MSW  

USC SCHOOL OF SOCIAL WORK

USC School of Pharmacy
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this is our future
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destiny
“To be a Trojan is to be an adventurer.”
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Highlights

June 30 June 30 
2011 2010

Financial (in thousands)

Total revenues $3,922,665 $3,129,148

Total cash gifts and equipment gifts $423,947 $479,212

Capital expenditures $212,238 $248,036

Total assets at year end $7,652,732 $6,464,226

Total debt at year end $973,361 $923,775

Increase in net assets $991,926 $430,875

Market value of endowment $3,517,173 $2,947,978

Executed contracts, grants, subcontracts and cooperative agreements $1,077,566 $985,029

Property, plant and equipment, net $2,172,430 $2,049,198

Net Asset Balances:

  Unrestricted $2,644,220 $2,288,314

  Temporarily restricted $1,449,152 $1,039,472

  Permanently restricted $1,635,486 $1,409,146

Students
Enrollment (head count, autumn):

  Undergraduate students 17,380 16,751

  Graduate and professional students 19,516 18,073

Degrees conferred:

  Bachelor degrees  4,915 4,259

  Advanced  6,815 6,191

  Certificates 364 279

Annual tuition rate $40,384 $38,570

Faculty and Staff
Faculty 4,797 4,462

Staff 11,383 10,659

destiny
“To be a Trojan is to be an adventurer.”
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Trustees of the University of Southern California

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of 
activities, and cash flows, which appears on pages 17 through 33, present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of the University of Southern California and its subsidiaries (the “university”) 
at June 30, 2011, and the changes in their consolidated net assets and their cash flows for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the university’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative informa-
tion has been derived from the university’s 2010 financial statements, and in our report dated September 30, 
2010, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements. We conducted our audit of these 
statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Los Angeles, California 
October 19, 2011
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
in thousands

June 30 June 30 
2011 2010 

Assets A B

Cash and cash equivalents  $889,233 $742,409

Accounts receivable 273,988 229,614

Notes receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts, $7,367 (2011), $9,841 (2010) 83,620 84,433

Pledges receivable 434,356 177,095

Investments 3,650,617 3,070,397

Inventories, prepaid expenses and other assets 148,488 111,080

Property, plant and equipment, net 2,172,430 2,049,198

Total Assets $7,652,732 $6,464,226

Liabilities
Accounts payable $145,338 $138,686

Accrued liabilities 273,122 187,797

Refundable advances 18,501 41,187

Current portion of long-term debt 5,280 3,885

Deposits and deferred revenue 131,673 121,663

Actuarial liability for annuities payable 143,303 137,195

Federal student loan funds 67,812 67,825

Asset retirement obligations 97,691 93,831

Capital lease obligation 60,696 0

Long-term debt 968,081 919,890

Other liabilities 12,377 15,335

Total Liabilities 1,923,874 1,727,294

Net Assets
Unrestricted 2,644,220 2,288,314

Temporarily restricted 1,449,152 1,039,472

Permanently restricted 1,635,486 1,409,146

Total Net Assets 5,728,858 4,736,932

Total Liabilities and Net Assets  $7,652,732 $6,464,226

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Activities
in thousands 
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   Year Ended Year Ended 
    June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010

  Temporarily Permanently   
 Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total Total 
 Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets Net Assets

Revenues  A B C D E

Student tuition and fees $1,267,545 $1,267,545 $1,152,480

  Less financial aid (356,859)  (356,859) (325,467

Net student tuition and fees 910,686   910,686 827,013 

Endowment income 53,200   53,200 50,094

Investment and other income 4,505 $184 4,689 10,885

Net appreciation in fair value of investments 218,946 $386,211 19,801 624,958 296,456

Government contracts and grants 350,827 350,827 285,571

Recovery of indirect costs 132,254 132,254 118,896

Gifts and pledges 318,325 145,990 216,952 681,267 491,309

Sales and service 31,029 31,029 31,221

Auxiliary enterprises 243,011   243,011 225,363

Health care services 811,538   811,538 713,291

Other 95,705   95,705 89,813

Present value adjustment to annuities payable  (3,194) (13,305) (16,499) (10,764

Net assets released from restrictions/redesignations 116,619 (119,327) 2,708

Total Revenues  3,286,645 409,680 226,340 3,922,665 3,129,148

Expenses 

Educational and general activities 1,931,735 1,931,735 1,800,354

Health care services 799,944 799,944 714,606

Depreciation and amortization 153,647 153,647 142,471

Interest on indebtedness 45,413 45,413 40,842

Total Expenses 2,930,739   2,930,739 2,698,273

Increase in Net Assets 355,906 409,680 226,340 991,926 430,875

Beginning Net Assets 2,288,314 1,039,472 1,409,146 4,736,932 4,306,057

Ending Net Assets $2,644,220 $1,449,152 $1,635,486 $5,728,858 $4,736,932

Nature of specific net assets:

Internally designated $71,225   $71,225 $52,049

Gift and departmental 454,026   454,026 444,993

Externally restricted  $38,953 $35,053 74,006 81,659

Pledges  223,104 211,252 434,356 177,095

Unexpended endowment income 181,710   181,710 163,490

Annuity and living trusts  46,628 81,782 128,410 114,763

True endowment and net appreciation  1,140,467 1,307,399 2,447,866 2,075,101

Funds functioning as endowment 1,069,307   1,069,307 872,877

Debt service funds 71,794   71,794 70,887

Invested in plant 796,158   796,158 684,018

 $2,644,220 $1,449,152 $1,635,486 $5,728,858 $4,736,932

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
in thousands

Year Ended Year Ended 
June 30, 2011 June 30, 2010

Cash Flows from Operating Activities A B

Change in Net Assets $991,926 $430,875

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by 
  operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 153,647 142,471

Loss on the disposal/sale of plant assets 2,606 6,247

In-kind receipt of securities, property, plant and equipment (26,946) (30,097

Present value adjustment to annuities payable 16,536 10,723

Increase in accounts receivable (44,374) (50,018

Increase in pledges receivable (281,494) (11,421

Increase in inventories, prepaid expenses and other assets (27,878) (17,277

Increase in accounts payable 5,813 13,189

Increase in accrued liabilities 22,579 32,310

Decrease in refundable advances (22,686) (2,679

Increase in deposits and deferred revenue 10,010 9,794

(Decrease) increase in other liabilities (2,958) 315

Contributions restricted for property, plant and equipment and permanent investment (89,958) (119,366

Net realized gain on sale of investments (162,941) (103,475

Net unrealized (appreciation) in investments (462,197) (193,212

  Net cash provided by operating activities 81,685 118,379

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from note collections 12,551 10,987

Notes issued  (9,264) (8,831

Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments 1,980,419 1,350,095

Purchase of investments (1,859,665) (1,314,906

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (212,238) (248,036

  Net cash used by investing activities (88,197) (210,691

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Contributions restricted for permanent investment:

  Endowment 69,468 63,104

  Plant 40,743 79,633

  Trusts and other 3,980 4,768

Repayment of long-term debt (3,885) (94,050

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 53,471 104,558

(Decrease) increase in federal student loan funds (13) 167

Investment losses on annuities payable (1,856) (2,106

Payments on annuities payable (13,358) (12,659

Increase to annuities payable resulting from new gifts 4,786 8,907

  Net cash provided by financing activities 153,336 152,322

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 146,824 60,010

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 742,409 682,399

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $889,233 $742,409

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1

Significant accounting policies followed by the University of  
Southern California are set forth below:

The University of Southern California is a not-for-profit, major 
private research university. The consolidated financial statements 
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America and with the provisions of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants’ Audit and Accounting Guide, “Not-for-Profit 
Entities,” which requires the university to classify its net assets into 
three categories according to donor-imposed restrictions or provisions 
of law: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted. 
All material transactions between the university and its subsidiaries 
have been eliminated.

The university is generally exempt from federal income taxes under 
the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c) (3). The 
university is also generally exempt from payment of California state 
income, gift, estate and inheritance taxes.

Unrestricted net assets:

Education and general: Education and general include the revenues  
and expenses associated with the principal educational mission of  
the university. 

Health care services: Health care services are reflective of the revenues 
and expenses associated with USC University Hospital, USC Norris 
Cancer Hospital, the Health Care Consultation Center, the Profes-
sional Services Agreement with Los Angeles County and USC Care 
Medical Group, Inc., a primary care and multi-specialty physician 
practice corporation. 

Sponsored research and departmental activities: Sponsored research  
agreements recognize revenue as it is earned through expenditure in 
accordance with the agreement. Any funding received in advance 
of expenditure is recorded as refundable advances. Departmental net 
assets include gifts to the university and its various schools and  
departments. The university has determined that any donor-imposed 
restrictions of gifts for current or developing programs and activities 
are generally met within the operating cycle of the university and, 
therefore, the university’s policy is to record these net assets as unre-
stricted. Internally designated net assets are those which have been 
appropriated by the Board of Trustees or designated by management. 

Unexpended plant and debt service funds: Unexpended plant and debt  
service net assets include gifts and income earned on unexpended  
balances for capital projects which are currently under construc-
tion and transfers from the operating budget to fund the debt service 
requirements for outstanding bonds, notes and mortgages payable. The 
university follows the policy of lifting the restrictions on contributions 
of cash or other assets received for the acquisition of long-lived assets 
when the restrictions are fulfilled or the assets are placed in service.

Invested in plant: Invested in plant assets, including collections of works 
of art and historical treasures, are stated at cost or fair value at the date 
of gift, plus the estimated value of any associated legal retirement obli-
gations, less accumulated depreciation, computed on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful or component lives of the assets (equip-
ment and library books useful lives ranging from 4 to 10 years and 
buildings component lives ranging from 5 to 50 years). Equipment is 
removed from the records at the time of disposal. The university fol-
lows the policy of recording contributions of long-lived assets directly 
in invested in plant assets when the purpose or time restriction is met 
instead of recognizing the gift over the useful life of the asset.

Long-term investment: Long-term investments include gifts and Board  
of Trustee designations to funds functioning as endowment, realized 
and unrealized gains and reinvested income (income earned in excess 
of the spending rule) on all endowment funds.

Student loan: Student loan net assets include lending activity to  
students utilizing university resources designated for that purpose.

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Gifts for which donor imposed restrictions have not been met (pri-
marily future capital projects), charitable remainder unitrusts, pooled 
income funds, gift annuities, net appreciation on true endowment and 
pledges receivable for which the ultimate purpose of the proceeds is not 
permanently restricted are included in temporarily restricted net assets. 

Permanently restricted net assets:

Gifts, charitable remainder unitrusts, pooled income funds, gift 
annuities and pledges receivable which require by donor restriction 
the investment of the corpus in perpetuity, net appreciation on true 
endowment and only the income be made available for program  
operations in accordance with donor restrictions and gifts which  
have been donor stipulated to provide loans to students are included 
in permanently restricted net assets. 

Other accounting policies:

Cash equivalents consist of resources invested in money market funds.

Investments are stated at fair value. Net appreciation (depreciation)  
in the fair value of investments, which consists of the realized gains or 
losses and the unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on those invest-
ments, is shown in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Realized 
gains and losses upon the sale of investments are calculated using the 
specific identification method and trade date. 

Alternative investment holdings and certain other limited partnership 
interests are invested in both publicly traded and privately owned 
securities. The fair values of private investments are based on estimates 
and assumptions of the general partners or partnership valuation com-
mittees in the absence of readily determinable market values. Such 
valuations generally reflect discounts for illiquidity and consider vari-
ables such as financial performance of investments, recent sales prices 
of investments and other pertinent information. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 (continued)

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first in, first out) or market.

The university receives federal reimbursement for a portion of the 
costs of its facilities and equipment used in organized sponsored 
research. The Office of Management and Budget, Circular A-21, 
establishes principles for determining such reimbursable costs, requires 
conformity of the lives and methods used for federal cost reimburse-
ment accounting and financial reporting purposes. The university’s 
policies and procedures are in conformity with these principles.

Student tuition and fees are recorded as revenues during the year the 
related academic services are rendered. Student tuition and fees received 
in advance of services to be rendered are recorded as deferred revenue.

The university’s split interest agreements with donors consist primarily 
of gift annuities, unitrusts, pooled income funds and life estates. For 
irrevocable agreements, assets contributed are included in the uni-
versity’s investments and stated at fair value. Contribution revenue is 
recognized at the date each trust is established after recording liabilities 
for the actuarially-determined present value of the estimated future 
payments to be made to the beneficiaries. The actuarial liability is 
discounted at an appropriate risk-adjusted rate at the inception of each 
agreement and the applicable actuarial mortality tables. Discount rates 
on split-interest agreements range from 3.3% to 9.5%. The liabilities 
are adjusted during the terms of the trusts for changes in the fair value 
of the assets, accretion of discounts, and other changes in the estimates 
of future benefits. The Retired Pensioners 2000 Mortality Table was 
used for annuities. California Statutory Reserve for annuities issued 
on or before December 31, 2004 used the 1983 Individual Annuity 
Mortality Table and the Annuity 2000 Mortality Table was used for 
annuities issued on or after January 1, 2005.

The university has recorded conditional asset retirement obligations 
associated with the legally required removal and disposal of certain 
hazardous materials, primarily asbestos, present in our facilities. When 
an asset retirement obligation is identified, the university records the 
fair value of the obligation as a liability. The fair value of the obliga-
tion is also capitalized as property, plant and equipment and then 
amortized over the estimated remaining useful life of the associated 
asset. The fair value of the conditional asset retirement obligations was 
estimated using a probability weighted, discounted cash flow model. 
The present value of future estimated cash flows was calculated using 
the credit adjusted, interest rate applicable to the university in order 
to determine the fair value of the conditional asset retirement obliga-
tions. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the university recognized 
accretion expense related to the conditional asset retirement obliga-
tion of approximately $4,876,000. For the year ended June 30, 2011, 
the university settled asset retirement obligations of approximately 
$1,017,000. As of June 30, 2011, included in the Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheet is an asset retirement obligation of $97,691,000.

Gifts from donors, including contributions receivable (unconditional 
promises to give), are recorded as revenues in the year received. Gifts 
are valued using quoted market prices, market prices for similar assets, 
independent appraisals, or by university management. Contributions 
receivable are reported at their discounted value using credit-adjusted 
borrowing rates and an allowance for amounts estimated to be uncol-
lectible is provided. Donor-restricted gifts, which are received and 
either spent, or deemed spent, within the same year, are reported as 
unrestricted revenue. Gifts of long-lived assets with no donor-imposed 
time restrictions are reported as unrestricted revenue in the year 
received. Gifts restricted to the acquisition or construction of long-
lived assets or subject to other time or purpose restrictions are reported 
as temporarily restricted revenue. The temporarily restricted net assets 
resulting from these gifts are released to unrestricted net assets when 
the donor-imposed restrictions are fulfilled or the assets are placed in 
service. Gifts received for endowment investment are held in perpetu-
ity and recorded as permanently restricted revenue.

Health care services revenues included the net patient service revenues 
associated with the USC University Hospital, USC Norris Cancer 
Hospital and USC Care Medical Group, Inc.. Net patient service 
revenue is reported as estimated net realizable amounts from patients, 
third party payors, government programs and other in the period in 
which services are provided. The majority of the health care services 
are rendered to patients with commercial or managed care insurance, 
or under the federal Medicare and California State Medi-Cal pro-
grams. Reimbursement from these various payors is based on a com-
bination of prospectively determined rates, discounts from charges and 
historical costs. Amounts received under the Medicare program are 
subject to retroactive settlements based on review and final determina-
tion by program intermediaries or their agents. Provisions for con-
tractual adjustments and retroactive settlements related to those payors 
are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services 
are rendered and adjusted in future periods as additional information 
becomes known or as final settlements are determined. Health care 
services revenues also include the revenues associated with the profes-
sional services agreement with the County of Los Angeles.

Allowances for doubtful accounts are based upon management’s assess-
ment of historical and expected net collections considering historical 
business and economic conditions. Periodically throughout the year 
management assesses the adequacy of the allowances for doubtful 
accounts based upon historical write-off experience. The results of this 
review are then used to make any modifications to the allowance for 
doubtful accounts. 
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Note 1 (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of con-
tingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized 
comparative information in total but not by net asset category. Such 
information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presenta-
tion in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should 
be read in conjunction with the university’s financial statements for 
the year ended June 30, 2010 from which the summarized financial 
information was derived. Certain reclassifications have been made to 
summarized financial information for comparative purposes.

The university applies the provision of Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 820, Fair 
Value Measurements, which defines fair value as the exchange price 
that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an 
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset 
or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on 
the measurement data.

The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair 
value and the primary valuation methodologies used by the university 
for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis. 
The three levels of inputs are as follows:

•   Level I - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or  
liabilities.

•   Level II - Inputs other than Level I that are observable, either 
directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or lia-
bilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs 
that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market 
data for substantially the same term of the assets or liabilities.

•   Level III - Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no 
market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets 
or liabilities.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy 
is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement. 

The university has adopted the authoritative guidance contained 
in FASB ASC 820-10, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, 
for estimating the fair value of investments in investment funds that 
have calculated Net Asset Value (“NAV”) per share in accordance 
with FASB ASC 946-10, Financial Services-Investment Companies 
(formerly the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
Audit and Accounting Guide, Investment Companies). According 
to this guidance, which was formerly referred to as FSP FAS 157-g 
or ASU 2009-12, in circumstances in which NAV per share of an 
investment is not determinative of fair value, a reporting entity is 
permitted to estimate the fair value of an investment in an investment 
fund using the NAV per share of the investment (or its equivalent) 
without further adjustment, if the NAV per share of the investment is 
determined in accordance with FASB ASC 946-10 as of the report-
ing entity’s measurement date. Accordingly, the university uses the 
NAV, as reported by the money managers as a practical expedient, to 
determine the fair value of investments in investment funds which (a) 
do not have a readily determinable fair value and (b) either have the 
attributes of an investment fund or prepare their financial statements 
consistent with the measurement principles of an investment fund. 
At June 30, 2011, the fair value of all such investments in investment 
funds has been determined by using NAV as a practical expedient. 

Additionally, in accordance with ASU 2009-12, the university consid-
ers several additional factors in appropriately classifying the investment 
funds in the fair value hierarchy. An investment is generally classified 
as Level II if the university has the ability to withdraw its invest-
ment with the investment fund at NAV at the measurement date. An 
investment is generally classified as Level III if the university does not 
have the ability to withdraw its investment with the investment fund 
at NAV, such as investments in closed-end funds, “side pockets,” or 
funds with suspended withdrawals imposed. If the university cannot 
withdraw its investment with the investment funds at NAV when 
such investment is subject to “lock-up” or gate, or its withdrawal 
period does not coincide with the university’s measurement date, 
the university considers the length of time until the investment will 
become redeemable in determining whether the fair value measure-
ment of the investment should be classified as a Level II or Level III 
fair value measurement.

Note 2

Accounts receivable (in thousands):

U.S. Government $23,967

Student and other, net of allowance for 
  doubtful accounts of $8,078 76,059

Patient care, net of allowance for 
  doubtful accounts of $22,497 173,962

 $273,988
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Note 3

Investments (in thousands):
Cost Fair Value

Equities $1,065,862 $1,228,567

Fixed income securities 460,615 456,039

Alternative investments:  

  Hedge funds 512,750 648,840

  Private capital 1,001,388 1,011,197

Real estate and other 247,678 178,375

Assets held by other trustees 114,176 127,599

Total  $3,402,469 $3,650,617

The following table summarizes the financial instruments carried at fair value as of June 30, 2011, by the ASC 820 valuation hierarchy  
defined above:

 Level I Level II Level III Total

Investments:  

  Equities $851,009 $324,748 $52,810 $1,228,567

  Fixed income securities  173,729 264,996 17,314 456,039

  Hedge funds    648,840 648,840

  Private capital    1,011,197 1,011,197

  Real estate and other    178,375 178,375

  Assets held by other trustees    127,599 127,599

Total investments  $1,024,738 $589,744 $2,036,135 $3,650,617

The university has classified all cash and cash equivalents as Level I financial instruments.

The following table summarizes the university’s Level III reconciliation of investments for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Balance at July 1, 2010 $1,475,101

  Net realized gains 67,154

  Net unrealized gains 223,380

  Transfers in* 108,501

  Net purchases, sales and settlements 161,999

Balance at June 30, 2011 $2,036,135

*Transfers were due to an increase or decrease in price transparency or the availability of dealer quotations at the end of each month.
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Note 3 (continued)

The university uses the NAV to determine the fair value of all the underlying investments which (a) do not have a readily determinable fair  
value and (b) prepare their financial statements consistent with the measurement principles of an investment company or have the attributes of  
an investment company. The following table lists investments in other investment companies (in partnership format) by major category:

       Redemption 
 Fair Value    Redemption Restrictions and 

Category of  Determined Unfunded   Restrictions Terms in Place  
Investment Investment Strategy Using NAV Commitments Remaining Life Redemption Terms and Terms at Year End

Assets Held Miscellaneous $127,599,000 Not Applicable Not Applicable Redemptions Not Applicable Not Applicable 
by Other investments held    are not permitted 
Funds outside USC    during the life 
 where USC has    of the fund. 
 no authority 
 over the fund

Distressed US and Non-US $87,695,000 $26,655,000 Approximately Redemptions Not Applicable  Not Applicable 
Obligation  Distressed Debt     5 Years are not permitted 
Partnerships Securities    during the life 
     of the fund.

Equity Funds US and Non-US $327,175,000 Not Applicable Open Ended Minimum None None 
 Equity Securities     Monthly 

Fixed Income US and Non-US $14,145,000 Not Applicable Open Ended Minimum None None 
Funds Fixed Income    Monthly 
 Securities

Hedge Funds US and Non-US  $648,840,000 $1,670,000 96.5% of NAV Ranges between 12% of NAV None 
 Investments in    has an open ended  monthly redemption is locked up 
 Relative Value,    life, 3% of NAV with 90 days notice,  for 3 months,  
 Event Driven,    will be liquidated  quarterly redemption 66% of NAV is 
 Long/Short,     on 12/31/11, and  with up to 90 days locked up for 
 and Directional    0.5% of NAV will notice, semi-annual 6 months, and 
 Strategies    be liquidated on  redemption with 22% of NAV is 
    an undetermined 60 days notice, and locked up for at 
    basis. annual redemption least 1 year. 
     with up to 180 days  
     notice. 

Natural  US and Non-US $320,683,000 $192,028,000 Approximately Redemptions Not Applicable Not Applicable 
Resources  Investments in   7 Years are not permitted 
Partnerships Upstream, Midstream,     during the life 
 and Downstream    of the fund. 
 Natural Resources 
 Investments

Other Funds US and Non-US  $186,000 Not Applicable Open Ended Monthly None None 
 Investments in  
 Securities Other  
 than Equity and  
 Fixed Income 

Private Capital US and Non-US $602,819,000 $287,640,000 Approximately Redemptions Not Applicable Not Applicable 
Partnerships Private Equity and   6 Years are not permitted 
 Venture Capital    during the life 
 Investments    of the fund.

Private  US and Non-US $146,831,000 $102,338,000 Approximately Redemptions Not Applicable Not Applicable 
Real Estate  Real Estate   6 Years are not permitted 
Partnerships     during the life 
     of the fund.

Total  $2,275,973,000 $610,331,000
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Note 4

Property, plant and equipment (in thousands):

Land and improvements $137,226

Buildings and improvements 2,573,792

Buildings under capital leases 60,696

Equipment 534,558

Library books and collections 239,424

Construction-in-progress 103,191

3,648,887

Less:  Accumulated depreciation 1,476,457

$2,172,430

Note 5

Bonds and note payable (in thousands):   Interest % Maturity 

California Educational Facilities Authority (CEFA) Revenue Bonds and Notes:

Series 2003A  4.75 2024 $50,000

  Premium     1,028

Series 2003B   5.00 2012-2016 5,705

  Premium     430

Series 2005   4.00-5.00 2012-2029 66,545

  Premium     2,280

Series 2007A   4.00-4.75 2012-2038 258,995

  Premium     2,290

Series 2009A   5.00-5.25 2039-2040 217,605

  Discount     (900

Series 2009B   5.00-5.25 2039-2040 197,900

  Premium     3,127

Series 2009C   5.25 2025 82,305

  Premium     7,932

University of Southern California Bonds

Series 1998   5.87-6.26 2014-2019 8,585

  Discount     (22

California Infrastructure Revenue Bonds USC (USC – Soto Street Health Sciences)   

Series 2010   2.00-5.00 2012-2032 36,975

  Premium     2,581

   

Notes Payable   5.00 2014-2015 30,000

     973,361

Less current portion of long-term debt     5,280

  $968,081

Principal payment requirements relating to bonds and notes pay-
able, after giving effect to refunding, for the next five fiscal years are 
approximately: 2012 $5,280,000; 2013 $5,495,000; 2014 $24,730,000; 
2015 $20,995,000; 2016 $6,265,000.

Interest payments for fiscal year 2011 were $45,390,000.

On April 6, 2009, a $100,000,000 revolving line of credit agreement 

was implemented with a bank. The credit agreement was amended on 
June 24, 2010 to increase the revolving line of credit to $200,000,000. 
The line of credit, which matures on June 30, 2013, accrues inter-
est based on LIBOR and contains a fee on the unused portion of the 
line of credit. During the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the 
university did not draw down on the line of credit. The line of credit 
contains certain restrictive covenants required in the agreement.

)

)
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Note 6

Financial aid is awarded to students based on need and merit. Financial aid does not include payments made to students for services rendered to 
the university. Financial aid for the year ended June 30, 2011 consists of the following (in thousands):

 
   Undergraduate Graduate Total

Institutional scholarships  $205,639 $95,551 $301,190

Endowed scholarships   21,015 9,765 30,780

External financial aid   16,993 7,896 24,889

   $243,647 $113,212 $356,859

Note 7

Endowment net assets are subject to the restrictions of gift instruments requiring that the principal be invested in perpetuity and only the income 
and realized gains be utilized for current and future needs. Long-term investment net assets (funds functioning as endowment and departmentally 
designated funds) have been established from restricted gifts whose restrictions have been met and unrestricted gifts which have been designated 
by the Board of Trustees or management for the same purpose as endowment. The university also has a beneficial interest in the net income 
earned from assets which are held and managed by other trustees.

Endowment and long-term investment net assets functioning as endowment are summarized as follows (in thousands):

 
   Funds functioning Departmentally  
  Endowment as endowment  designated funds Total

Pooled $2,372,460 $990,226 $9,641 $3,372,327

Non-pooled 75,406 69,440  144,846

  $2,447,866 $1,059,666 $9,641 $3,517,173

Pooled investments represent endowment and long-term investment net assets which have been commingled in a unitized pool (unit market 
value basis) for purposes of investment. The pool is comprised of cash and cash equivalents (7.81%), equities (37.99%), fixed income securities 
(7.16%), alternative investments (42.88%) and real estate and other investments (4.16%). Access to or liquidation from the pool is on the basis of 
the market value per unit on the preceding monthly valuation date. The unit market value at June 30, 2011 was $562.81.

The Board of Trustees has interpreted the “Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act” (“UPMIFA”) as requiring the preservation 
of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this 
interpretation, the university classifies as permanently restricted net assets, (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, 
(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accor-
dance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of 
the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until 
those amounts are appropriated for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance 
with UPMIFA, the university considers various factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate endowment funds including: 
duration and preservation of the fund, economic conditions, effects of inflation or deflation, expected return on the funds and other economic 
resources of the university.

Endowment net asset composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2011 (in thousands):

 
   Temporarily Permanently  
  Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds  $1,140,467 $1,307,399 $2,447,866

Board-designated endowment funds  $1,069,307   1,069,307

  $1,069,307 $1,140,467 $1,307,399 $3,517,173
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Note 7 (continued)

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30, 2011 (in thousands):

  Temporarily Permanently  
  Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets at July 1, 2010 $872,877 $835,920 $1,239,181 $2,947,978

Investment return:

  Investment income  53,200   53,200

  Net appreciation  217,053 374,219  591,272

Total investment return  270,253 374,219 0 644,472

Gifts and transfers  10,793  68,218 79,011

Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure  (84,616) (69,672)  (154,288

Endowment net assets at June 30, 2011  $1,069,307 $1,140,467 $1,307,399 $3,517,173

Endowments classified as permanently restricted net assets and tempo-
rarily restricted net assets are to be utilized for the following purposes:

Permanently restricted net assets (in thousands):

The portion of perpetual endowment funds that is required to be 
retained permanently either by explicit donor stipulation or by 
UPMIFA:

Restricted for scholarship support $333,791

Restricted for faculty support 343,035

Restricted for program support 630,573

Total endowment assets classified  
  as permanently restricted net assets $1,307,399

Temporarily restricted net assets (in thousands):

The portion of permanent endowment funds subject to a time restric-
tion under UPMIFA:

Restricted for scholarship support $278,544

Restricted for faculty support 391,302

Restricted for program support 470,621

Total endowment assets classified  
  as temporarily restricted net assets $1,140,467

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual 
donor-restricted endowment funds may fall below the value of the 
initial and subsequent donor gift amounts (deficit). When donor 
endowment deficits exist, they are classified as a reduction of unre-
stricted net assets. Deficits of this nature reported in unrestricted net 
assets were $13,303,000 as of June 30, 2011. These deficits resulted 
from unfavorable market fluctuations that occurred shortly after the 
investment of newly established endowments, and authorized appro-
priation that was deemed prudent.

The university has adopted endowment investment and spending  
policies that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to  
programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain 
the purchasing power of endowment assets. Under these policies, 
the return objective for the endowment assets, measured over a full 
market cycle, shall be to maximize the return against a blended index, 
based on the endowment’s target allocation applied to the appropriate 
individual benchmarks. The university expects its endowment funds 
over time, to provide an average rate of return of approximately 8.0% 
annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.

To achieve its long-term rate of return objectives, the university  
relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are 
achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized 
gains) and current yield (interest and dividends). The university targets 
a diversified asset allocation that places greater emphasis on equity-
based investments to achieve its long-term objectives within prudent 
risk constraints.

The university utilizes a spending rule for its pooled endowment in  
order to maximize the current and long-term investments of the 
endowment pool. The spending rule determines the endowment 
income and realized gains to be distributed currently for spending 
with the provision that any amounts remaining after the distribution 
be transferred and reinvested in the endowment pool as funds func-
tioning as endowment.

For the 2011 fiscal year, the Board of Trustees approved current  
distribution of 100% of the prior year’s payout, within a minimum of 
4% and a maximum of 6% of the average market value for the previ-
ous 12 calendar quarters. Under the provisions of the spending rule, 
$25.42 was distributed to each time-weighted unit for a total spending 
rule allocation of $152,320,000. Investment income amounting to 
$8.55 per time-weighted unit was earned, totaling $51,232,000, and 
$101,088,000 was appropriated for current operations from cumula-
tive gains of pooled investments. Endowment pool earnings allocated 
for spending in fiscal year 2011 represent 4.4% of the market value of 
the endowment pool at June 30, 2011.

)
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Note 8

At June 30, 2011, the university has adopted the required disclosures under ASU 2010-20, Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing 
Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses. According to this guidance, the university is required to disclose the nature of credit risk  
inherent in the portfolio of financing receivables, its analysis and assessment in arriving at the allowance for credit losses (doubtful accounts),  
and the changes and reasons for those changes in the allowance for credit losses.

Long-term financing receivables as of June 30, 2011 consist of the following (in thousands):

June 30, 2011

  Financing  Allowance 
   Receivables,  for Doubtful 
   at Gross  Accounts Net

Perkins loans  $49,727  $49,727

University direct student loans   25,342 ($7,367) 17,975

Other student loans    15,918    15,918

  Total student loans    90,987 (7,367) 83,620

Faculty and other loans    29,357    29,357

Total   $120,344 ($7,367) $112,977

Management regularly assesses the adequacy of the allowance for credit losses by performing ongoing evaluations of the student loan portfolio, 
including such factors as the differing economic risks associated with each loan category, the financial condition of specific borrowers, the eco-
nomic environment in which the borrowers operate, the level of delinquent loans, the value of any collateral and, where applicable, the existence 
of any guarantees or indemnifications. The university’s Perkins receivable represents the amounts due from current and former students under 
the Federal Perkins Loan Program. Loans disbursed under the Federal Perkins Loan Program are able to be assigned to the Federal Government 
in certain non-repayment situations. In these situations the Federal portion of the loan balance is guaranteed. Included in other loans are loans 
related to the Federal Health Professional Student Loan Program (“HPSL”) and Loans for Disadvantaged Students (“LDS”).

Factors also considered by management when performing its assessment, in addition to general economic conditions and the other factors 
described above, included, but were not limited to, a detailed review of the aging of the student loan receivable detail and a review of the default 
rate by loan category in comparison to prior years. The level of the allowance is adjusted based on the results of management’s analysis. It is the 
university’s policy to write off a loan only when it is deemed to be permanently uncollectible.

The following table illustrates the aging analysis of receivables as of June 30, 2011 (in thousands):

 
 1-60 Days 61-90 Days > 91 Days   Total Financing
 Past Due Past Due Past Due Current Receivables

Perkins loans $1,727 $445 $6,231 $41,325 $49,728

University direct student loans 473 222 10,203 14,443 25,341

Other student loans 1,091 102 484 14,241 15,918

  Total student loans 3,291 769 16,918 70,009 90,987

Faculty and other loans    29,357 29,357

Total $3,291 $769 $16,918 $99,366 $120,344

Considering the other factors already discussed herein, management considers the allowance for credit losses to be prudent and reasonable.  
Furthermore, the university’s allowance is general in nature and is available to absorb losses from any loan category. Management believes  
that the allowance for credit losses at June 30, 2011 is adequate to absorb credit losses inherent in the portfolio as of that date.

As part of the program to attract and retain exemplary faculty and senior staff, the university provides home mortgage financing assistance.  
Notes receivable amounting to $29,357,200 were outstanding as of June 30, 2011 and are collateralized by deeds of trust. No allowance for 
doubtful accounts has been recorded against these loans based on their collateralization and prior collection history. At June 30, 2011, there  
were no amounts past due under the faculty and staff loan program.
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Note 9

Unconditional promises are included in the consolidated financial 
statements as pledges receivable and revenue of the appropriate net 
asset category. Pledges are recorded after discounting using rates rang-
ing from 1% to 6% to the present value of the future cash flows. 

Unconditional promises are expected to be realized in the following 
periods (in thousands): 

In one year or less $97,550

Between one year and five years 256,695

More than five years 213,245

Less:  discount of $123,389 and allowance of $9,745 (133,134

$434,356

Pledges receivable at June 30, 2011 have the following restrictions  
(in thousands):

Endowment for departmental 
  programs and activities $201,309

Endowment for scholarship 10,915

Building construction 107,768

Departmental programs and activities 114,364

$434,356

Note 10

Executed contracts, grants, subcontracts and cooperative agreements 
for future sponsored research activity which are not reflected in the 
consolidated financial statements at June 30, 2011 are summarized as 
follows (in thousands):

Current sponsored awards $493,964

Executed grants and contracts for future periods 583,602

$1,077,566

Note 11

At June 30, 2011, the university had remaining commitments of 
approximately $610,331,000 with alternative investment managers 
and/or limited partnerships.

Contractual commitments for educational plant amounted to approxi-
mately $64,572,000 at June 30, 2011. It is expected that the resources 
to satisfy these commitments will be provided from certain unex-
pended plant net assets, anticipated gifts and/or debt proceeds.

During the year ended June 30, 2007, the university entered into 
an agreement with the County of Los Angeles to provide profes-
sional services at LAC+USC Medical Center. Under the terms of 
the agreement the contract automatically renews on an annual basis 
unless either party gives four years’ notice of the termination. No such 
notice has been provided by either party.

Note 12

Retirement benefits for employees are provided through the Teachers 
Insurance and Annuity Association and the College Retirement Equities 
Fund, The Vanguard Group, AIG SunAmerica, Fidelity Investments 
and Prudential Financial. Under these defined contribution plans, 
the university and plan participants make contributions to purchase 
individual, fixed or variable annuities equivalent to retirement benefits 
earned or to participate in a variety of mutual funds or commingled 
funds. Benefits commence upon termination or retirement and pre-
retirement survivor death benefits are also provided. Charges to edu-
cation and general activities expenses for the university’s share of costs 
were approximately $101,353,000 during the year ended June 30, 2011.

Retirement benefits for hospital union employees are provided by a 
defined contribution plan through Fidelity Investments. Under the 
defined contribution plan, participants make contributions to purchase a 
variety of mutual funds. The university makes its contribution following 
the end of the calendar year and matches the participants’ contributions 
up to 3% of eligible earnings providing the participant was employed 
on the last day of the calendar year. In addition, the university makes 
a 1% retiree medical benefit contribution to all participants who were 
both employed on the last day of the calendar year and worked 1,500 
hours in that calendar year. The university contribution is subject to 
a five year vesting schedule although previously credited years from 
before the acquisition have been carried over. Benefits commence at 
age 591/2; termination of employment, or retirement and pre-retirement 
survivor death benefits are also provided. Charges to education and  
general activities expenses for the university’s share of costs were 
approximately $3,117,000 during the year ended June 30, 2011.

Retirement benefits for non-exempt employees are provided through 
a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan. The following table 
sets forth the plan’s funded status at June 30, 2011 (in thousands):

Obligations and Plan Assets 

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation 

Benefit obligation at end of prior year $167,715

Interest cost 9,887

Actuarial loss 10,520

Benefits paid (5,797

Benefit obligation at end of year $182,325

Change in Plan Assets 

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year $138,235

Actual return on plan assets 25,466

Benefits paid (5,797

Fair value of plan assets at end of year $157,904

)

)

)
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Note 12 (continued)

Reconciliation of Funded Status

Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $182,325

Projected benefit obligation at end of year ($182,325

Fair value of plan assets at end of year 157,904

Funded status ($24,421

Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Interest cost $9,887

Expected return on plan assets (10,825

Amortization of net loss 4,054

Total benefit cost $3,116

Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Position

Noncurrent liabilities ($24,421

Amounts not yet recognized as components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Net loss $58,747

Changes in the net reduction to Unrestricted Net Assets 

Net gain ($4,119

Amortization of net gain (4,054

Total ($8,173

The estimated net loss/(gain) and prior service cost for the USC  
Support Staff Retirement Plan that will be recognized as components 
of net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are $3,496,000 
and $0, respectively.

The plan was amended to freeze benefit accruals for all remaining 
active union participants effective December 23, 2009, and to provide 
full vesting for those participants. 

No special accounting for curtailments, settlements or termination 
benefits was required during the year ended June 30, 2011.

Assumptions

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit 
cost for year ended June 30:

  Discount rate 6.00%

  Expected return on plan assets 8.00%

  Rate of compensation increase N/A

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net year-end benefit 
obligations at June 30:

  Discount rate 5.60%

  Rate of compensation increase N/A

Plan Assets

In managing the plan assets, our objective is to be a responsible fidu-
ciary while minimizing financial risk. Plan assets include a diversified 
mix of fixed income securities and equity securities across a range of 
sectors and levels of capitalization to maximize the long-term return 
for a prudent level of risk. In addition to producing a reasonable 
return, the investment strategy seeks to minimize the volatility in our 
expense and cash flow. The target allocation for pension benefit plan 
assets is 65% equity securities and 35% fixed income securities.

As described in Note 1, the university uses a hierarchy to report 
invested assets, including the invested assets of the plan. Following is 
a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured 
at fair value.

Fair Value

The plan’s interest in collective trusts is valued based on the net asset 
value information reported by the investment advisor. The fund is  
valued at the normal close of trading on the New York Stock 
Exchange every day the Exchange is open (a “Business Day”). Equity 
securities are valued at the official closing price of, or the last reported 
sales price on, the exchange or market on which such securities are 
traded, as of the close of business on the day the securities are being 
valued or at the last available bid price. In cases where equity securi-
ties are traded on more than one exchange, the securities are valued 
on the exchange or market determined to be the most representative 
market, which may be either a securities exchange or the over-the-
counter market. Short term investments are carried at market value. 
Securities and other assets for which representative market quotations 
are not readily available or are considered unreliable by the investment 
advisor are fair valued as determined in good faith under guidelines 
approved by Capital Guardian Trust Company. Various factors may 
be reviewed in order to make a good faith determination of a secu-
rity’s fair value.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation 
that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future 
fair values. Furthermore, while the plan believes its valuation methods 
are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use 
of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value 
of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value 
measurement at the reporting date.

 
)

)

)

)

)

)

)
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Note 12 (continued)

A summary of fair value measurements by level for investments measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows (in thousands):

 Level I Level II Level III Total

Collective Trust Funds:

  Short-term investment fund  $284  $284

  Equities   102,729  102,729

  Fixed income securities   54,891  54,891

Total   $157,904  $157,904

Allocation of Assets

The year-end asset allocation, which approximates the weighted-aver-
age allocation for the plan assets as of June 30, 2011 and in comparison 
to target percentages for each asset category, is as follows: 

  
  Target at 
Asset Category June 30, 2011 June 30, 2011

Equity securities 65.1% 65.0%

Debt securities 34.9% 35.0%

Total 100.0% 100.0%

The portfolio is evaluated annually, or when the actual allocation 
percentages are plus or minus 2% of the stated target allocation per-
centages. Changes in policy may be indicated as a result of changing 
market conditions or anticipated changes in the pension plan’s needs. 
Prohibited transactions include investment transactions prohibited by 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and specula-
tive investments including commodities or unregistered stock without 
specific prior approval by the Investment Committee.

Contributions

No contribution to the pension plan was required during the year 
ended June 30, 2011. The university may make discretionary con-
tributions to its pension plan during the next fiscal year. This will be 
reassessed during the year.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future ser-
vice, as appropriate, are expected to be paid (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

2012 $6,674

2013 $7,268

2014 $7,900

2015 $8,504

2016 $9,060

2017 – 2021 $52,237
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Note 13

The university is the lessee of various equipment and space under noncancelable operating and capital leases. Operating lease rental expense for 
the year ended June 30, 2011 was approximately $21,176,000. Space leases contained customary escalation clauses, which are included in annual 
aggregate minimum rentals.

Future aggregate minimum rental payments under operating and capital leases are as follows (in thousands):

Future minimum rental payments:

Operating Capital

2012 $26,645 $3,659

2013 25,842 3,713

2014 26,024 3,769

2015 23,924 3,826

2016 19,207 3,883

Thereafter 119,566 89,790

241,208 108,640

Less: Interest on capital leases  (47,944

Total $241,208 $60,696

Note 14

Expenses are presented by functional classification in accordance with the overall service mission of the university. Each functional classifica-
tion displays all expenses related to the underlying operations by natural classification. Depreciation expense is allocated based on square footage 
occupancy. Interest expense on external debt is allocated to the functional categories which have benefited from the proceeds of the external 
debt. Plant operations and maintenance represents space related costs which are allocated to the functional categories directly and/or based on the 
square footage occupancy. 

Functional expense consists of the following (in thousands):

 Academic,  
 Health Care and Support Fund Raising Year Ended  
 Student Services Services Activities  June 30, 2011

Compensation $1,138,664 $223,961 $18,890 $1,381,515

Fringe benefits  284,377 72,414 6,260 363,051

Operating expenses 603,041 241,381 9,597 854,019

Cost of goods sold  28,133 56,617 84,750

Travel 39,751 8,061 532 48,344

Allocations:

  Depreciation 111,843 41,645 159 153,647

  Interest 15,158 30,255 45,413

  Plant operations and maintenance 121,031 (121,314) 283

$2,341,998 $553,020 $35,721 $2,930,739

)
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Note 15

The university is contingently liable as guarantor on certain obliga-
tions relating to equipment loans, student and parent loans, and 
various campus organizations. The university receives funding or 
reimbursement from governmental agencies for various activities, 
which are subject to audit. In addition, certain litigation has been filed 
against the university and in the opinion of university management, 
after consultation with legal counsel, the liability, if any, for the afore-
mentioned matters will not have a material effect on the university’s 
financial position.

Note 16

The estimated fair value of the university’s bonds, notes and mort-
gages payable was $995,143,000 at June 30, 2011. This fair value was 
estimated based upon the discounted amount of future cash outflows 
using the rates offered to the university for debt of the same remaining 
maturities.

Determination of the fair value of notes receivable, which are primar-
ily federally sponsored student loans with U.S. Government mandated 
interest rates and repayment terms and subject to significant restric-
tions as to their transfer or disposition, could not be made without 
incurring excessive costs.

Note 17

Members of the Board of Trustees and senior management may, from 
time to time, be associated, either directly or indirectly, with compa-
nies doing business with the university. For senior management, the 
university requires annual disclosure of significant financial interest in 
entities doing business with the university. These annual disclosures 
cover both senior management and their immediate family members. 
When such relationships exist, measures are taken to appropriately 
manage the actual or perceived conflict in the best interests of the 
university. The university has a written conflict of interest policy that 
requires, among other things, that no member of the Board of Trust-
ees can participate in any decision in which he or she or an immedi-
ate family member has a material financial interest. Each trustee is 
required to certify compliance with the conflict of interest policy on 
an annual basis and indicate whether the university does business with 
an entity in which a trustee has a material financial interest. When 
such relationships exist, measures are taken to mitigate any actual or 
perceived conflict, including requiring the recusal of the conflicted 
trustee and that such transactions be conducted at arm’s length, for 
good and sufficient consideration, based on terms that are fair and 
reasonable to and for the benefit of the university, and in accordance 
with applicable conflict of interest laws. As part of a competitive pro-
cess the university entered into a contract for the construction of a 
building with a company associated with a trustee. The value of the 
contract was approximately $36,000,000.

Note 18

The university has performed an evaluation of subsequent events 
through October 19, 2011, which is the date the financial statements 
were issued. On August 17, 2011 the university issued $300,000,000 
of University of Southern California 5.25% Taxable Bonds, Series 
2011. The bonds will mature on October 1, 2111.
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2012 Summary of Budgeted Operating Revenues & Expenses
2011-12 Budget / in thousands  

Undesignated Budget

Education and General Health Care Services Designated Budget Total Budget

2010-11 2011-12 Percent 2010-11 2011-12 Percent 2010-11 2011-12 Percent 2010-11 2011-12 Percent 
 Budget Budget Change Budget Budget Change Budget Budget Change Budget Budget Change

Revenues

Tuition and fees $1,239,593 $1,331,587 7.4%       $1,239,593 $1,331,587 7.4%

  Less student aid (302,672) (323,228) 6.8%    ($62,755) ($66,053) 5.3% (365,427) (389,281) 6.5%

Net tuition and fees 936,921 1,008,359 7.6%    (62,755) (66,053) 5.3% 874,166 942,306 7.8%

Endowment income 61,528 62,640 1.8%    53,920 55,258 2.5% 115,448 117,898 2.1%

Investment income 340 910 +100.0%   $17     340 927 +100.0%

Gifts 38,369 30,185 (21.3%)    195,843 206,756 5.6% 234,212 236,941 1.2%

Contracts and grants – direct       412,609 426,887 3.5% 412,609 426,887 3.5%

Recovery of indirect costs:

  Contracts and grants 122,370 127,239 4.0%      122,370 127,239 4.0%

  Endowments/Gifts 13,779 14,834 7.7%       13,779 14,834 7.7%

Auxiliary enterprises 245,465 259,342 5.7%       245,465 259,342 5.7%

Sales and service and other sources 107,321 117,069 9.1%  $814,463 913,998 12.2%    921,784 1,031,067 11.9%

Total Revenues $1,526,093 $1,620,578 6.2% $814,463 $914,015 12.2% $599,617 $622,848 3.9% $2,940,173 $3,157,441 7.4%

Expenses

Compensation:   

  Faculty salaries $295,997 $316,990 7.1% $144,347 $151,720 5.1% $81,731 $85,242 4.3% $522,075 $553,952 6.1%

  Other salaries and wages 448,027 471,555 5.3% 220,795 272,135 23.3% 161,484 166,310 3.0% 830,306 910,000 9.6%

  Employee benefits 224,168 238,144 6.2% 105,260 117,784 11.9% 66,579 69,466 4.3% 396,007 425,394 7.4%

Total Compensation 968,192 1,026,689 6.0% 470,402 541,639 15.1% 309,794 321,018 3.6% 1,748,388 1,889,346 8.1%

Current expense 336,584 359,376 6.8% 265,004 292,050 10.2% 199,188 211,928 6.4% 800,776 863,354 7.8%

Capital financing 67,143 67,556 0.6% 25,782 21,105 (18.1% 840 716 (14.8%) 93,765 89,377 (4.7%

Professional services 36,305 38,065 4.8% 27,016 30,456 12.7% 21,777 24,026 10.3% 85,098 92,547 8.8%

Equipment/Library 19,139 22,617 18.2% 3,131 2,916 (6.9% 25,259 22,589 (10.6%) 47,529 48,122 1.2%

Utilities/Telephone 43,960 45,046 2.5% 5,908 6,097 3.2%    49,868 51,143 2.6%

Off-campus facilities 20,917 22,798 9.0% 3,109 2,960 (4.8% 20,999 19,329 (8.0%) 45,025 45,087 0.1%

Travel 20,514 22,905 11.7% 1,468 1,599 8.9% 18,878 22,737 20.4% 40,860 47,241 15.6%

Rentals and leases 13,339 15,526 16.4% 12,643 15,193 20.2% 2,882 505 (82.5%) 28,864 31,224 8.2%

Total Expenses $1,526,093 $1,620,578 6.2% $814,463 $914,015 12.2% $599,617 $622,848 3.9% $2,940,173 $3,157,441 7.4%

)

)

)
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Undesignated Budget

Education and General Health Care Services Designated Budget Total Budget

2010-11 2011-12 Percent 2010-11 2011-12 Percent 2010-11 2011-12 Percent 2010-11 2011-12 Percent
Budget Budget Change Budget Budget Change Budget Budget Change Budget Budget Change

Revenues

Tuition and fees $1,239,593 $1,331,587 7.4%       $1,239,593 $1,331,587 7.4%

  Less student aid (302,672) (323,228) 6.8%    ($62,755) ($66,053) 5.3% (365,427) (389,281) 6.5%

Net tuition and fees 936,921 1,008,359 7.6%    (62,755) (66,053) 5.3% 874,166 942,306 7.8%

Endowment income 61,528 62,640 1.8%    53,920 55,258 2.5% 115,448 117,898 2.1%

Investment income 340 910 +100.0%   $17     340 927 +100.0%

Gifts 38,369 30,185 (21.3%)    195,843 206,756 5.6% 234,212 236,941 1.2%

Contracts and grants – direct       412,609 426,887 3.5% 412,609 426,887 3.5%

Recovery of indirect costs:

  Contracts and grants 122,370 127,239 4.0%       122,370 127,239 4.0%

  Endowments/Gifts 13,779 14,834 7.7%       13,779 14,834 7.7%

Auxiliary enterprises 245,465 259,342 5.7%       245,465 259,342 5.7%

Sales and service and other sources 107,321 117,069 9.1%  $814,463 913,998 12.2%    921,784 1,031,067 11.9%

Total Revenues $1,526,093 $1,620,578 6.2% $814,463 $914,015 12.2% $599,617 $622,848 3.9% $2,940,173 $3,157,441 7.4%

Expenses

Compensation:   

  Faculty salaries $295,997 $316,990 7.1% $144,347 $151,720 5.1% $81,731 $85,242 4.3% $522,075 $553,952 6.1%

  Other salaries and wages 448,027 471,555 5.3% 220,795 272,135 23.3% 161,484 166,310 3.0% 830,306 910,000 9.6%

  Employee benefits 224,168 238,144 6.2% 105,260 117,784 11.9% 66,579 69,466 4.3% 396,007 425,394 7.4%

Total Compensation 968,192 1,026,689 6.0% 470,402 541,639 15.1% 309,794 321,018 3.6% 1,748,388 1,889,346 8.1%

Current expense 336,584 359,376 6.8% 265,004 292,050 10.2% 199,188 211,928 6.4% 800,776 863,354 7.8%

Capital financing 67,143 67,556 0.6% 25,782 21,105 (18.1% 840 716 (14.8%) 93,765 89,377 (4.7%

Professional services 36,305 38,065 4.8% 27,016 30,456 12.7% 21,777 24,026 10.3% 85,098 92,547 8.8%

Equipment/Library 19,139 22,617 18.2% 3,131 2,916 (6.9% 25,259 22,589 (10.6%) 47,529 48,122 1.2%

Utilities/Telephone 43,960 45,046 2.5% 5,908 6,097 3.2%    49,868 51,143 2.6%

Off-campus facilities 20,917 22,798 9.0% 3,109 2,960 (4.8% 20,999 19,329 (8.0%) 45,025 45,087 0.1%

Travel 20,514 22,905 11.7% 1,468 1,599 8.9% 18,878 22,737 20.4% 40,860 47,241 15.6%

Rentals and leases 13,339 15,526 16.4% 12,643 15,193 20.2% 2,882 505 (82.5%) 28,864 31,224 8.2%

Total Expenses $1,526,093 $1,620,578 6.2% $814,463 $914,015 12.2% $599,617 $622,848 3.9% $2,940,173 $3,157,441 7.4%

)
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Annenberg School for School of Continuing Education 
Communication and Journalism  School of Architecture Cinematic Arts and Summer Programs

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $49,429 $14,614 $17,379 $2,366 $44,856 $9,109 $2,510 $386
  Center 62,096 14,614 22,711 2,366 57,594 9,109 2,563 386

  UG Student Aid Fund (10,900)  (4,488)  (10,879)     

  Facilities Improvement Fund (1,767)  (844)  (1,859)  (53)   

Indirect  (2,057)  (1,736)  (2,918)     
  Participation  (4,184) (1,923)  (4,395)     

  Academic Initiatives      175     

  Provost’s Initiatives 84  53  238     

  Graduate Programs 2,043  134  1,064     

Total Revenues  $47,372 $14,614 $15,643 $2,366 $41,938 $9,109 $2,510 $386

Expenses 
Direct  $38,794 $14,614 $11,281 $2,366 $29,151 $9,109 $2,510 $386

Indirect  8,578  4,362  12,787     
  Allocated Central Costs 7,314 3,691  11,803     

  Facilities Based  1,264  671  984     

Total Expenses  $47,372 $14,614 $15,643 $2,366 $41,938 $9,109 $2,510 $386

Davis School Dornsife College of   
 of Gerontology Letters, Arts and Sciences Gould School of Law Graduate Programs

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $6,936 $5,150 $249,362 $78,413 $39,323 $3,324 $57,331 
  Center 7,699 5,150 362,144 78,413 41,005 3,324 57,331 

  UG Student Aid Fund (599) (101,562)  (258)   

  Facilities Improvement Fund (164) (11,220)  (1,424)   

Indirect  3,541  5,588  2,040  (49,872)  
  Participation  (474) (28,697)  (2,994)    

  Academic Initiatives  3,200 220  2,000  21,745 

  Provost’s Initiatives 45 715  3,034   

  Graduate Programs 770 33,350    (71,617) 

Total Revenues  $10,477 $5,150 $254,950 $78,413 $41,363 $3,324 $7,459 

Expenses 
Direct  $5,775 $5,150 $161,808 $78,413 $30,828 $3,324 $7,459 

Indirect  4,702  93,142  10,535    
  Allocated Central Costs 4,163 79,563  9,092    

  Facilities Based  539  13,579  1,443   

Total Expenses  $10,477 $5,150 $254,950 $78,413 $41,363 $3,324 $7,459 
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Institute for Marshall School School of Policy,  Roski School 
Creative Technologies of Business Planning, and Development of Fine Arts

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $6,061 $35,524 $150,327 $17,824 $31,228 $11,336 $8,898 $315
  Center 6,061 35,524 188,953 17,824 35,954 11,336 12,774 315

  UG Student Aid Fund   (32,358)  (3,398)  (3,488)  

  Facilities Improvement Fund   (6,268)  (1,328)  (388)  

Indirect  (455)  (12,603)  (1,505)  (273)
  Participation  (455) (14,311)  (2,958)  (951)  

  Academic Initiatives        385 

  Provost’s Initiatives  65  25  68  

  Graduate Programs   1,643  1,428  225  

Total Revenues  $5,606 $35,524 $137,724 $17,824 $29,723 $11,336 $8,625 $315

Expenses 
Direct  $4,857 $35,524 $98,529 $17,824 $20,095 $11,336 $6,353 $315

Indirect  749  39,195  9,628  2,272  
  Allocated Central Costs 749 36,446  8,864  1,956  

  Facilities Based    2,749  764  316  

 Total Expenses  $5,606 $35,524 $137,724 $17,824 $29,723 $11,336 $8,625 $315

Rossier School    
 of Education School of Social Work School of Theatre Thornton School of Music

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $57,351 $9,527 $63,156 $10,029 $12,576 $1,247 $25,667 $1,086
  Center 59,502 9,527 65,245 10,029 17,993 1,247 34,337 1,086

  UG Student Aid Fund (726)  (106)  (4,855)  (7,581) 

  Facilities Improvement Fund (1,425)  (1,983)  (562)  (1,089) 

Indirect  (1,599)  (3,272)  (1,003)  3,035 
  Participation  (3,260) (4,109)  (1,373)  (2,643) 

  Academic Initiatives   300    5,100 

  Provost’s Initiatives 20 87  145  308 

  Graduate Programs 1,641 450  225  270 

 Total Revenues  $55,752 $9,527 $59,884 $10,029 $11,573 $1,247 $28,702 $1,086

Expenses 
Direct  $48,607 $9,527 $54,359 $10,029 $8,166 $1,247 $19,180 $1,086

Indirect  7,145  5,525  3,407  9,522 
  Allocated Central Costs 6,383 5,146  2,661  8,355 

  Facilities Based  762 379  746  1,167 

 Total Expenses  $55,752 $9,527 $59,884 $10,029 $11,573 $1,247 $28,702 $1,086
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2012 Colleges, Schools, Centers & Institutes
Individual Revenue Center Summary / 2011-12 Budget / in thousands

Definitions:

Direct Revenues and Direct Expenses in Revenue Centers include  
all categories displayed in the Summary of Budgeted Operating  
Revenues and Expenses.

Center Revenues are directly generated by the center less any financial 
aid paid from center funds.

The Undergraduate Student Aid is centrally administered and charged 
to academic centers on a pre-determined percent of undergraduate 
tuition. For fiscal year 2011-2012, the rate is 29.5%.

Indirect Revenues are the sum of Participation, Academic Initiatives, 
Provost’s Initiatives, and Graduate Programs.

Participation is a tax on gross tuition revenue, recovery of indirect 
costs, sales and service and other sources. For fiscal year 2011-2012, 
the rate is 7.5%.

Academic Initiatives funding is for specific activities for a limited  
time period.

Provost’s Initiatives funding is allocated from centrally controlled 
funds to support university priorities.

Graduate Programs funding is provided to schools in support of  
graduate education. All PhD tuition is centralized and allocated to 
various schools based on academic priorities.

Indirect Expenses are the sum of Allocated Central Costs and Facilities 
Based Indirects and equal the net budgets of administrative centers (see 
Individual Administrative Centers 2011-2012 Budget by Presidential 
and Senior Vice Presidential Responsibility Area).

Allocated Central Costs are central administrative costs that benefit  
the university as a whole and are allocated to revenue centers.

Facilities Based Indirects are space related costs that can be linked  
directly to a center’s occupancy.

 Viterbi School of Engineering  Total Colleges, Schools,
 Academic Programs Information Sciences Institute Centers and Institutes

  Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated  

Revenues 
Direct   $108,612 $62,678 $8,350 $74,708 $939,352 $337,636
  Center   127,208 62,678 8,350 74,708 1,169,520	 337,636

  UG Student Aid Fund   (14,586)    (195,784)

  Facilities Improvement Fund   (4,010)    (34,384)

Indirect    16,651    (46,438)
  Participation   (10,264)  (641)  (83,632)

  Academic Initiatives    8,000  641  41,766

  Provost’s Initiatives       4,887

  Graduate Programs   18,915    (9,459)

Total Revenues   $125,263 $62,678 $8,350 $74,708 $892,914 $337,636

Expenses 
Direct   $81,265 $62,678 $5,542 $74,708 $634,559 $337,636

Indirect    43,998  2,808  258,355
  Allocated Central Costs  37,073  2,808  226,067

  Facilities Based    6,925    32,288

Total Expenses   $125,263 $62,678 $8,350 $74,708 $892,914 $337,636
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2012 Health Sciences Schools & Health Care Services
Individual Revenue Center Summary / 2011-12 Budget / in thousands

Keck School of Medicine Ostrow School of Dentistry School of Pharmacy Total Health Sciences Schools

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $156,925 $215,822 $94,704 $12,994 $44,186 $10,433 $295,815 $239,249
  Center 161,022 215,822 99,676 12,994 45,497 10,433 306,195	 239,249

  UG Student Aid Fund (1,987) (2,069)    (4,056) 

  Facilities Improvement Fund (2,110) (2,903)  (1,311)  (6,324) 

Indirect  15,265  (5,344)  (2,133)  7,788
  Participation  (8,519) (6,962)  (3,541)  (19,022) 

  Academic Initiatives  16,900 200    17,100 

  Provost’s Initiatives 65 186    251 

  Graduate Programs 6,819 1,232  1,408  9,459 

Total Revenues  $172,190 $215,822 $89,360 $12,994 $42,053 $10,433 $303,603 $239,249

Expenses 
Direct  $119,814 $215,822 $66,682 $12,994 $31,337 $10,433 $217,833 $239,249

Indirect  52,376  22,678  10,716  85,770 
  Allocated Central Costs 42,358 18,598  9,296  70,252 

  Facilities Based  10,018 4,080  1,420  15,518 

Total Expenses  $172,190 $215,822 $89,360 $12,994 $42,053 $10,433 $303,603 $239,249

 
Dentistry Health Care Keck Medical Center Pharmacy Health Care Total Health Care Services

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $4,495  $908,860  $660  $914,015 
  Center 4,495 908,860  660  914,015 

  UG Student Aid Fund     

  Facilities Improvement Fund      

Indirect       
  Participation      

  Academic Initiatives      

  Provost’s Initiatives     

  Graduate Programs     

Total Revenues  $4,495  $908,860  $660  $914,015 

Expenses 
Direct  $4,460  $902,373  $599  $907,432 

Indirect  35  6,487  61  6,583 
  Allocated Central Costs 35 6,487  61  6,583 

  Facilities Based       

Total Expenses  $4,495  $908,860  $660  $914,015 
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2012 Auxiliaries & Athletics
Individual Revenue Center Summary / 2011-12 Budget / in thousands

   
Animal Resources Bookstores  Hospitality Housing

Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $383  $43,449  $41,148  $54,490 
  Center 383 43,449  41,148  54,490 

  UG Student Aid Fund     

  Facilities Improvement Fund     

Indirect       
  Participation      

  Academic Initiatives      

  Provost’s Initiatives     

  Graduate Programs     

Total Revenues  $383  $43,449  $41,148  $54,490 

Expenses 
Direct  ($1,318)  $38,711  $37,120  $43,100 

Indirect  1,701  4,738  4,028  11,390  
  Allocated Central Costs 752 3,964  2,968  7,256  

  Facilities Based  949  774  1,060  4,134  

Total Expenses  $383  $43,449  $41,148  $54,490 

  Student Health and 
Intercollegiate Athletics Radisson Hotel Senior Care Counseling Services

 Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct $61,573 $4,600 $8,489  $1,445  $43,166 ($325) 
  Center 61,573 4,600 8,489  1,445  43,166 (325) 

  UG Student Aid Fund    

  Facilities Improvement Fund    

Indirect     
  Participation    

  Academic Initiatives    

  Provost’s Initiatives   

  Graduate Programs   

Total Revenues $61,573 $4,600 $8,489  $1,445  $43,166 ($325)  

Expenses 
Direct $52,403 $4,600 $8,199  $1,445  $40,606 ($325)  

Indirect 9,170  290    2,560  
  Allocated Central Costs  6,626 290    2,138  

  Facilities Based  2,544      422  

Total Expenses $61,573 $4,600 $8,489  $1,445  $43,166 ($325)  
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Transportation University Club  University Village USC Radio

Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $19,253  $815  $1,700  $6,777 $585
  Center 19,253 815  1,700  6,777 585

  UG Student Aid Fund      

  Facilities Improvement Fund      

Indirect       
  Participation      

  Academic Initiatives      

  Provost’s Initiatives     

  Graduate Programs     

Total Revenues  $19,253  $815  $1,700  $6,777 $585

Expenses 
Direct  $11,611  $396  $1,135   $6,045 $585

Indirect  7,642  419  565  732 
  Allocated Central Costs 5,973 280  565  732 

  Facilities Based  1,669 139    

Total Expenses  $19,253  $815  $1,700  $6,777 $585

Total Auxiliaries 
and Athletics 

Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct  $282,688 $4,860 
  Center 282,688	 4,860

  UG Student Aid Fund  

  Facilities Improvement Fund  

Indirect  
  Participation   

  Academic Initiatives   

  Provost’s Initiatives  

  Graduate Programs  

Total Revenues  $282,688 $4,860 

Expenses 
Direct  $239,453 $4,860 

Indirect  43,235
  Allocated Central Costs 31,544 

  Facilities Based  11,691 

Total Expenses  $282,688 $4,860  
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2012 Classification by Center
2011-12 Budget / in thousands

 Colleges, Schools, 
 Centers and Institutes Health Sciences Schools Health Care Services

  Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct   $939,352 $337,636 $295,815 $239,249 $914,015 
  Center   1,169,520 337,636 306,195 239,249 914,015 

  UG Student Aid Fund   (195,784)  (4,056)  

  Facilities Improvement Fund   (34,384)  (6,324)  

Indirect    (46,438) 7,788  
  Participation   (83,632)  (19,022)  

  Academic Initiatives    41,766  17,100  

  Provost’s Initiatives  4,887  251  

  Graduate Programs  (9,459)  9,459  

Total Revenues   $892,914 $337,636 $303,603 $239,249 $914,015 

Expenses 
Direct   $634,559 $337,636 $217,833 $239,249 $907,432 

Indirect    258,355  85,770  6,583 
  Allocated Central Costs  226,067  70,252  6,583 

  Facilities Based    32,288  15,518  

Total Expenses   $892,914 $337,636 $303,603 $239,249 $914,015 

  
 Auxiliaries and Athletics Total Revenue Centers Administrative Centers

  Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated 

Revenues 
Direct   $282,688 $4,860 $2,431,870 $581,745 $87,886 $41,103
  Center   282,688 4,860 2,672,418	 581,745 (152,662) 41,103

  UG Student Aid Fund    (199,840)  199,840 

  Facilities Improvement Fund     (40,708)  40,708 

Indirect      (38,650)  60
  Participation     (102,654)  

  Academic Initiatives     58,866  

  Provost’s Initiatives    5,138  60 

  Graduate Programs      

Total Revenues   $282,688 $4,860 $2,393,220 $581,745 $87,946 $41,103

Expenses 
Direct   $239,453 $4,860 $1,999,277 $581,745 $481,889 $41,103

Indirect    43,235  393,943  (393,943) 
  Allocated Central Costs  31,544  334,446  (334,446) 

  Facilities Based    11,691  59,497  (59,497) 

Total Expenses   $282,688 $4,860 $2,393,220 $581,745 $87,946 $41,103
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 Provost Funding Total University Grand Total

  Undesignated  Designated Undesignated  Designated  

Revenues 
Direct    $14,837  $2,534,593 $622,848  $3,157,441
  Center   14,837  2,534,593	 622,848	 	 3,157,441

  UG Student Aid Fund     

  Facilities Improvement Fund     

Indirect    38,590    
  Participation   102,654    

  Academic Initiatives    (58,866)    

  Provost’s Initiatives  (5,198)    

  Graduate Programs     

Total Revenues    $53,427  $2,534,593 $622,848  $3,157,441

Expenses 
Direct    $53,427  $2,534,593 $622,848  $3,157,441

Indirect 
  Allocated Central Costs

  Facilities Based 

Total Expenses    $53,427  $2,534,593 $622,848  $3,157,441
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 Net Operating Employee 
 Budget  Benefits Budget

President
President’s Office $3,698  —

Provost and Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs
Academic Affairs $5,862 

Academic Senate 163 

Emeriti Center 562 

Enrollment Services 21,132 

Faculty Affairs 1,235 

Faculty Sabbaticals  $11,884

Global Initiatives 2,419 

Information Technology Services 45,136 

Office of Research 9,028 

Provost’s Office 6,506 

Student Affairs 10,633 392

University Art Galleries 598 

University Libraries 37,783 

USC Stevens Institute 4,281 

Total $145,338 $12,276

Senior Vice President, Administration
Administrative Operations $2,211 $3,730

Audit Services 1,664 

Career and Protective Services 35,116 12,452

Center for Work and Family Life  902

Compliance 4,555 

General Counsel 8,898 

Senior Vice President’s Office  4,432 

Tram, Campus Cruiser and Rideshare 4,614 1,196

University Real Estate 6,410 

Total $67,900 $18,280

 Net Operating Employee 
 Budget  Benefits Budget

Senior Vice President, Finance & CFO
Budget and Planning $2,435 $1,004

Campus Development 2,407 

Comptroller 7,420 399,887

Corporate Expense 36,305 

Facilities Management Services 74,836 

Financial and Business Services 14,257 

Major Maintenance and Renovation 2,057 

Senior Vice President’s Office 2,661 

Treasury 1,356 

Total $143,734 $400,891

Senior Vice President, University Advancement
Senior Vice President’s Office $20,059 

USC Alumni Association 1,351 

Total $21,410 —

Senior Vice President, University Relations
University Relations $11,863 —

 

  

Employee Benefit Recoveries  ($431,447

Total Administrative Centers $393,943 —

  

Undergraduate Student Aid Fund $199,840 

Facilities Improvement Fund 40,708 

Grand Total $634,491 —

2012 Individual Administrative Centers by Presidential
& Senior Vice Presidential Responsibility Area
2011-12 Budget / in thousands

)
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The central mission of the University of Southern California is the development of human beings and 
society as a whole through the cultivation and enrichment of the human mind and spirit. The principal 
means by which our mission is accomplished are teaching, research, artistic creation, professional practice 
and selected forms of public service.

Our first priority as faculty and staff is the education of our students, from freshmen to postdoctorals, 
through a broad array of academic, professional, extracurricular and athletic programs of the first rank.  
The integration of liberal and professional learning is one of USC’s special strengths. We strive constantly 
for excellence in teaching knowledge and skills to our students, while at the same time helping them  
to acquire wisdom and insight, love of truth and beauty, moral discernment, understanding of self, and 
respect and appreciation for others.

Research of the highest quality by our faculty and students is fundamental to our mission. USC is one 
of a very small number of premier academic institutions in which research and teaching are inextricably 
intertwined, and on which the nation depends for a steady stream of new knowledge, art and technol-
ogy. Our faculty are not simply teachers of the works of others, but active contributors to what is taught, 
thought and practiced throughout the world.

USC is pluralistic, welcoming outstanding men and women of every race, creed and background.  
We are a global institution in a global center, attracting more international students over the years than 
any other American university. And we are private, unfettered by political control, strongly committed  
to academic freedom, and proud of our entrepreneurial heritage.

An extraordinary closeness and willingness to help one another are evident among USC students, 
alumni, faculty, and staff; indeed, for those within its compass the Trojan Family is a genuinely supportive 
community. Alumni, trustees, volunteers and friends of USC are essential to this family tradition, provid-
ing generous financial support, participating in university governance, and assist-ing students at every turn.

In our surrounding neighborhoods and around the globe, USC provides public leadership and public 
service in such diverse fields as health care, economic development, social welfare, sci-entific research, 
public policy and the arts. We also serve the public interest by being the largest private employer in the 
city of Los Angeles, as well as the city’s largest export industry in the private sector.

USC has played a major role in the development of Southern California for more than a century, and 
plays an increasingly important role in the development of the nation and the world. We expect to con-
tinue to play these roles for many centuries to come. Thus our planning, commitments and fiscal policies 
are directed toward building quality and excellence in the long term.

Adopted by the USC Board of Trustees, February 3, 1993

Role & Mission of the University of Southern California
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